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ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

TRUSTEES' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Governors present their annual report together with the financial statements and auditors” repoert of the charitable
company tor the vear/period 1st September 2022 te 315t August 2023, The annual report serves the purposes of both a
Governors™ report, and a directors™ report under company law.

The academy rust operates an academy lor pupils uged 4 10 11 years. Il is siluated in the village of Bracebridge Heath
which is three miles south of the Cathedral City of Lincoln. Tt has a pupil capacity of 418 and had a roll of 385 in the
school census on May 2022,

The words 'trustee’ and 'governor’ are inter-changeable throughout this report.

Structure, governance und management

Constitution

The academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity. The charitable company’s memorandum
and articles of association arc the primary governing documents of the academy trust. The governors of St. John's
Primary Academy are also the dircctors of the charitable company for the purposes ot company law. The charitable
company operates as St John's Primary Academy Bracebridge Heath Lid.

Details of the trustees whao served during the year, and to the date these accounts are approved are included in the
Reference and Administrative Tdetails on page 1.

Members' liubility

LCach member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the charitable company in the event of
it being wound up while they are a member, or within one year after they cease to be a member, such amount as may be
required. not exceeding £10, for the debts and liahilities contracted before they ceased to be a member.

Trustees' indemnities

The Academy Trust maintains Governors™ and officers” liability insurance which gives appropriate cover for any legal
acticn brought apainst its Governors. The Academy Trust has also granted indemnitics to cach of its Governors and
other officers W the extenl permitled by law, Qualifying third parly indemmity provisions (as delined by scetion 234 of
lhe Companies Act 2006) were in loree during the peried and remain in force, in relalion o certain losses and liabilities
which the Governors or other officers may incur to third parties in the course of acting as Governors or officers of the
Academy Trust.

Method of recruitment and appeintment or election of trustees

Where a vacancy cxists, any povernor can nominate a replacement, but appointment onto the board is at the diserction
ol the whole body. Parent governors arc invited onto the board lollowing an clection process whercby parents with
pupils atlending the school are given the opporlunily Lo vole [or their choice ol representative.

Under the terms of its Articles, the Academy ‘Lrust can appoint up to 8 Governors:

Stall Governors

Local Authority Governors
Headteacher (ex-officio)
Parent Governor

Up to 5 Co-opted Governors

. & & 2 @




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Policies and procedures adopled lor the induction and lraining ol trusiees

During the year under review the Full Governing Body met 8 times and there were 22 {including the Full Governing
Body meetings) committee meetings and members” mectings {2 meetings). The training and induction provided for
new Governors depends on their provious experience. All new Governors are given a tour of the school and the chance
o meel with stall und students. All Governors are given aceess (0 Governor Hub which holds copies of policies,
procedures, minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other documents that they will need to undertake their role as
CGovernors. All Governors also take part in regular online training and their pregress towards studying particular
aspects of governance is recorded by the Clerk; there is also oceasional face to face training provided by an advisor.

Organisational structure

The organisational strueture consists of four levels: the Members, Governors, the Scnior Leadership Team and
Leadership Team. The aim of the management slructure 15 10 devolve responsibilily and encourage involvemnent in
decision making at all levels.

The Senior Leadership Team comprises the Headteacher, Deputy Headteacher, Assistant Headteacher and the School
Busingss Manager, This team controls the academy at exceutive level, implementing the policies laid down by the
vovernors and reporting back (o them. The Headteacher 1s responsible for the authorisation of spending up 1o a level
delegated to her within agreed budgets and the appointment of staff, although appointment boards for posts in the
Senior Leadership Team always contain a Governor. Leadership Team includes members of SLT as well as Key Stage
Teaders. Middle leaders including Curriculum leaders along with the Senior Teadership and Teadership Teams are
responsible for the day to day operation of the Acaderny, in particular organising the teaching staff, curriculum,
training, facilitics and pupils.

The Members are responsible for proposing decisions regarding the strategic direction of the school. All considerations
proposed by the Members are discussed and agreed at Governors” meetings hefore any decisions are made.

The [ull Governing Body is supported by 4 commitiees as Lollows:
*  Resources Committee (which includes Finance; Estate maintenanee and development and TTealth and Safety)
® Pupil Standards and Assessment Committee
*  Performance Pay Committee
*  Audit Committee




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

The Governors are responsible for setting general policy, adopting an annual plan and budget and monitoring its
variances, making decisions about the direction of the academy, major capital expenditure and senior staft’
appointments.

The responsibilities include:

.

Ensuring the grant from the 1E is used only for the purposes intended

Ensuring that funds arc rceeived according to the Academy’s Funding Aprecmaent
Approval ol the annual budgct

Appointment of the Headlgacher

Appointment of the Business Manager in conjunction with the eadteacher
Decision on all tenders {over £25,000 capital and non-capital)

Setting the terms of reference for the sub-committees

The financial responsibilitics of the Resources Committes:

Initial review and authorisation of the annual budgel

Review of the scheol’s uccounting policies and procedures

Ensuring annual accounts are produced in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and the
T guidanee issued to academies

Monitoring the accounts

Agrecing the appointment of the auditors

Reviewing and updating the risk regisler

Reviewing financial controls informalion provided by the Chair of Governors {these will be reported Lo the Full
Govemning Body}




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Arrangements for sctting pay and romuncration of koy management personncl

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the members, governors and senior leadership team as
disclosed on page 1.

The remuncration policy, sctting the terms and conditions for the key management personnel, was developed and
approved by the board of governors, alter taking advice from the Headicacher and following guidance from the
relevanl prolessional pay review bodies. Naturally the Headieacher wus nol involved in seiling her own remuneration
package.

Only staff governors, including the Headteacher, are renmunerated, and these individuals only receive remuneration in
respect of services they provide under their contracts of emplovment, and not in respect of their role as governaors,
specific disclosures concerning staff povernors” remuncration is included in note 10,

The day to day running of the remuneration policy is delegated to the Headteacher and monitored by the pay
committee. All details for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel are set out in the pay policy
which is reviewed annually by the board of governors.

Remumeration of key management personnel is set at an individual level, and where possible the governoers have taken
external professional advice which includes benchmarking, market trends and advice on structuring of incentives.
Senior management salarics are linked to pay spines, helping governors conclude that cach individual is remuncrated at
an appropriate level. As such salaries are linked 1o lacters such as length ol service and experience. Tolal remuneration
packages include emplover pension contribution rates at specific approved rates.

The board always bear in mind the charitable status of the academy trust and it recognises the fact that the trust receives
funding under a funding agreemant with the Secretary of State for Education, and therefore ensure the remuneration
paid to scnior management personnel never excceds a reasenable amount that provides value for money to the st
The performance of senior management personnel is reviewed on a regular basis 1o chsure continuing value lor moncy.

Total remuneration paid to senior management persennel is set out in note 9.
The responsibilities of the Pay Committee:
*  Revicwing the Headteacher’s annual remuncration

*  Approval of staff remuneration

I'rade union facility time
The academy docs not have 49 full time cquivalent employees thronghout any 7 months within the reparting period

and, therelore, the trust is not required {o disclose this infprmation,

Reluted partics and other conneeted charities and organisations

The academy is not part of a wider netwark that impacts on the operating policies of the academy. The academy does
not cooperate with any other party in pursuit of charitable activities,

Since 5 Seplember 2023, Mr T Sisman, an employee of The Priory Federation of Academies Trusl, has been seconded
to the trust as Ieadteacher in anticipation of 5t John's Primary Academy joining The Priory Federation of Academies
Trust in January 2024.

-G-




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Objectives and activities

Ohbjects and aims

The principal objecl and activity ol the charitable company is the operation of S1. John’s Primary Academy, o provide
education for students of different abilities between the ages of 4 and 11, In accordance with the Articles of
Association, the Charitable Company has adapted a ‘Scheme of Government’ approved by the Secretary of State for
Cducation. The schoel has a highly effective partnership between staff, students, parents and the wider community all
of whom are working together to deliver high quality education. At St. John’s we always put children first; this aim is
at the heart of our vigion. Every child is unique. Every child deserves the opportunity to be happy, feel valued and
experience success. We pride ourselves in providing a caring friendly environment whers it is possible to know all our
children and their famnilies. We beligve that every child is different, yet equally important and valued. We aim to give
the highest priority to academic excellence through a broad based, balanced and exciting creative curriculum. We aim
to nurture happy confident children with enquiring minds who learn to succeed and to contribute to their class, their
school environment and the wider community. As an academy, the schoel now has autonemy to work in partnership
with ather schools and is committed to sharing its expertise in as many ways as possible.

Objcets and aims

St John's Primary Academy is [ocused on providing excellent academic achievemnenl through a Growlh Mindset
approach that will prepare our students for the future. By providing a wide range of educational experiences, we aim to
develop the potential of all students, whatever their level of ability. Staff are focused, well-maotivated and commirtted to
ensuring everything we do together is “growing young minds™ through a values driven curriculum that is both engaging
and relevant, which cquips our pupils for now and the future; resulting in cxccllent teaching and learming expericnces
for pupils. Whilst continuing to ensuire the loundations [or an cxcellent education are securcly in place, we aim 1o
ENCOUrage Innovation, crealivily and the exploration of ideas that will allow us o conlidently (orge ahead.

The aims of St. John's Primary Academy are summarised below:
* Al pupils achieving their potential
All pupils achieve happiness and well being
All pupils understand the importance of a healthy lifestyle
Everyone works as a weam where overyone contribuies, is listened 1o and respected
Provide a safe environment where risk taking is acceptable
All pupils being developed as independent learners
Cnsuring partnership with families
Developing confident members of society
Developing responsible citizens
Ensuring pupils have respeact for difference; that diversity and unicqueness are celebrated

* b & & 5 & & & @

The aims are underpinned by our school values: RESPECT, KINDNESS, CONFIDENCE, TOLERANCE,
SCELT-DISCIPLINL.




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Disabled employees

The policy of the Academy Trust is to support the recruitment and retention of employees with disabilities. The
Academy Trust does this by adapting the physical environment and facilities, making the appropriate resources
available and by holding regular meetings with the appropriate services and personnel to discuss ongeing needs. The
training, career development and promotion of all personnel employed by the Academy Trust takes into account their
aptitude, levels of skill and expericnce.

Equal opportunities

The governors recognise that equal oppoertunities should be an integral part of good practice within the workplace. The
Academy Trust aims to cstablish cqual oppertunity in all arcas of its activitics including creating a working
cnvironmenlt in which the contribution and needs ol all people are lully valued.

Objectives, strategies and activities

The School Development Plan outlines the key areas of focus for 2022 — 2023 to enable realisation of the school’s
aims and vision.

Our aims 2022 — 2023:

[insure robust, systematic recording of safeguarding ineidents that meet legislative requirements

Ensure government Working together to Improve School Attendance guidance (Sept. 22) is embedded in
practice and pupil attendance figurcs arc raised

T ensure tcachers have depth of subject knowledge 10 ensure precision in teaching

To ensure all curriculum implementation is eslablished

To ensure SMSC is fully embedded in curriculum

To ensure British Values and citizenship are embedded and have impact

To drive the engagement of children (particularly pupil premium) in outside of school hours clubs
Support those children who may need to “catch up” on their learning

To increase the number of children achieving expected levels in all subjects

‘T'e increase the percentage of children achiceving Greater Depth in all subjocts

To aceclerate the progress of disadvantaged pupils

Toe immprove leaching and learning in wriling

Te review curriculum intent, implementation and impact and to embed the new cwrriculum in the teaching and
learning

*  To ensure that subject leaders have the knowledge and skills needed in order to promote their subject and lead
and embed it in the new curriculum

. 0 & & & > 4 2 2 & @

To cmbed the use of pastoral provision for those children who need emotional support




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

School Environment
* Te develop the outdoor area for lunchtimes that is used by the nurture group which includes vulnerable children
‘T'e develop nurture room that is used by the nurture group which includes vulnerable children
Te lurther develop outside play experienee for the whole school
Te develop leamning opportunities for all children in the outside environment
To ensure decoraticn of school is of a good quality and aesthetically pleasing
To provide a designated library and learing area — for intervention, catch up and hooster groups

* & & & o

Leadership and Management:

® Ensure the continuing development of key stage leaders and Deputy Ileadteacher
*  Continue to work with our local network and colleagues to ensure the delivery of focused, planned CPD
®* T'o improve Leaders” management of safeguarding and attendance systenis

Care, Guidance and Support:
*  Contimue to lead a successful *Anti-bullying Awareness” campaign for pupils, staff and parents;
Continue encouraging pupils (0 make healthy cheoices
Develop our Nurture group and support for vulnerable pupils
Work with Tincolnshire County Couneil to include those difficnlt to manage children

e & o 0

Continue (0 work with our local community 1o engage the children and ercale a partnership for learning

Staffing:
* (Continue to develop the role of curriculum leaders
®  To work with other practitioners w support the SENDCo as the numbers of our EHCP children increase
* To support and develop new members of statf
*  Te support staff wellbeing

Enrichment:
® Ensure opportunities are available for all pupils to make choices regarding extra-curricular activities
® Tnsure “talented” pupils have the opportunities to further their talents
* Provide enrichment opportunities with particular regard for Pupil Premium children

-9-




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Public henefit

At St. John's Primary Academy. all staff and pupils are encouraged to have high expectations of themselves and others.
This demands that all staff are vigilant in determining the very best for pupils, both in terms of curriculum content and
updates, resources, the delivery of interesting and exciting lessons and a well-balanced curriculum. Staff pride
themselves on their ability to embrace change and innovation, striving to deliver outstanding lessons that enable pupils
to achieve well. The use of technology across the school encourages creativity and self-expression in all subject arcas.

All pupils are supported and given the opportunity to thrive. This includes More Able and talented pupils and those
with additional needs, including medical needs. Provision is made to encourage pupils o be active, taking part in sports
and sports events, music including local competitions and in the arts,

St. John's works well with its local network of schools, primary and secondary, who act as critical friends. sharing
expertise, advice, new developments and innovative ideas. This eperates at all levels including senior and middle
leadership, teaching and non-teaching statf. Through working together, we can extend our thinking, experience and
cxpertise,

Our pupils benefit from consistency in the munagement of positive behaviour, attitudes and having shared values, They
are taught te be kind and caring towards others, demonstrating respect and personal responsibility. Staff are available to
offer guidance and support, encouraging pupils to make the right choices which includes the expertise of a Pastoral
Lead.

Our pupils also have access to a nurture group available each lunchtime. The group is led by the Pastoral Lead and
SENDCo where children whe experience difficulties with social and emotional elements of learning are encouraged to
develop sound communication and social skills which in turn raise self-esteem, The aim is to integrate these children
back inte main stream lunch rooms when their self esteem is secure and they are able to enjoy social time with their
fricnds.

St. John’s main investment is its staff. Providing staff with an appropriate environment to enable teaching and learming
to be effective, with ongoing opportunities for personal development and lifelong learning, are key features of the
school. Through rigorous and robust self-evaluation within a culture of accountability, staff are able to be very effective
within the classrapm and the relationship established with parents and stakcholders. Staff are expocted to aperate using,
current cducational thinking, constantly reviewing and analysing school performance. They encourage pupils 1o take an
active role by supporling and cultvating an environmenl where all are respected, listened (o and reated fairly. Swalf
wellbeing is supported in school with regular staff voice being sought, 2 governor with a remit for staff wellbeing, the
opportunity 1o speak to a governor who is trained in counselling, and paid for sessions with an outside counsellor.

-10-




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Publi¢ benefit (continued)

St. John’s welcomes members of the local community into the school, sharing its facilities out of hours with local clubs
and groups and through activities planned by the Friends of the School Committee. St. John's is involved in the
community and has worked with Bracebridge Heath Community group; St. John’s Evangelist Church and Lincolnshire
Coop.

Qur children have also been involved in raising money for charity through Children in Need, Poppy selling, British Red
Cross; Lincoln Larder {food bank) a lacal charity. We were amang the top schools in the region for raising the most
money for the British T.egion and were very prond of our pupils at 8t. John’s who are always keen ro raise money for
those less fortunate and often take the initiative in fund raising campaigns.

In setling our objectives and planning our activities the Governors have given carelul consideralion lo the Charily
Commission's general guidance on public benefit, The Governors believe that the Academy Trust's aims, together with
the activities outlined above, are demonstrably to the public benefit.

- 11 -




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Strategic report
Achievements and performance

Teaching & Learning

St. John's children have heen exposed to uninterrupted learning in schoal this vear. Our children now engage with
whole school assemblies, trips and vigits, parents and the community coming into school, Friends of School discos
and other events.

St. John's undertook a very successful OFSTED monitoring visit in June 2023 which was decemed a graded
inspection. The grades lor:

Overall effectiveness  good

The guality of education — goad

Behaviour and aulitudes — good

Personal development — good

Leadership and management — gond

Early years provision — good

Our school attainment results have shown that our teaching and learning hus been successtul, as well as school led
tutoring for our Pupil Premium pupils which has taken place right across this year.

FYFS 69% Good level of development

Year 1 phonics 72%

Year 2 SATs results Reading 71%, Writing 56% Maths 76% Science 8§7%

Year 4 multiplication check — 79%

Year 6 SATs results — Spelling, Punctuation and Grammar 76% (Greater depth 33%),
Maths 76%% (Greater Depth 17%)
Reuding 71% {Grealer Depth 33%)
Writing 68% (Greater Depth 3%

Considering our data will help to inform our School Development Plan for next year.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

School Environment

The nurture room is being used to provide suppert for our vulnerable children.

Stary cirele and wood area is now in place.

Leadership and Management

We have begun to further develop our curriculum leaders to support teaching and lcarning in their subjceet. Schemes
of work for curriculum arcas have been rescarched and purchased. Staff have developed their use over the year and
these are now quile well embedded in eaching and learning. Senior leadership have worked wilh our SENDCo (who

is also leading attendance) to understand the attendance strategy.

Our SENDCo has undertaken safeguarding training across the year in order to become a further Deputy Designated

Safeguarding T.ead for the school. She has also trained in Farly Help and Team Around the Child in order to lead this

in school.

Care, Guidance and Support

* &+ & @

Continue encouraging pupils to make healthy choices

Develop Nurtare group and support for vulnerable pupils

Work with Lincolnshire County Council to include these ditficult to manage children

Continue to work with our local community to engage the children and crcate a partncrship for learning

Toe conlinue ww work within the “Caring o Leam™ approach o working with vulnerable pupils (o ensure the best
life chances and aceelerated educational progress.

Enrichment

L
-

Ensure opportunitics arc available for all pupils to make choices regarding extra-curricular activitics
Ensure “lalented” pupils have the opportunitics o further their talents
Provide enrichment vpportunities with particular regard for Pupil Premium children




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Key performance indicators

The Gevernors cansider that the following are key performance indicators for the Academy Trust:
* Development within the community will also preduce demand for places. Pupil numbers lead directly to the
Education and Skills Funding Apency (ESFA) funding level.
Prudent management ol income to match expenditure Lor the year hag been a priority [or governors in order to
secure general linancial stability. However, ensuring [unds are spent limely and wisely in vrder lo support
teaching and leaming for pupils attending the academy at any given time, is considered of the utmost
importance.
®* The percentage of income received from TSFA spent on total staff costs has been considered. Govemors are
confident that the correct staffing levels have been applicd, taking into consideration staff costs as a percentage
of grant income (the additional cxpenditure on staffing from Pupil Premium which is vsed to employ addirional
stall to support teaching and learning) logether as a percentage of total costs. Carelul consideration of slalling
going forward is considered with regurd to staffing restructuring if necessary.
Careful monitoring of funds. the scrutiny of financial reports, together with prudent and econmomical
administration, is highly considered
*  Avoiding waste and extravagance
Securing value for money through the efficient, effective and economic use of available resources
®* The Governors look to minimise and ensure good value for money by competitive tendering and “best value™
ordering processes. The funding allocated by the DIE through General Aggaregated Grant or Local Authority
CSE Grant is inlended lor expenditure in keeping with the school key objectives. We deliver education and
beyond ensuring that performance is a non-profit organisation.

The Governors have been pleased that expectations for all key performance indicators listed have been successfully met
during the period.

Going cancern

Following the end of the accounting period on 31 August 20123, the school within the trust will be transferred to another
trust, being The Priory Federation of Academics Trust on 1 Janvary 2024,

This means that St John's Primary Academy Bracebridge Heath Lid is no longer a going concern and the going concern
concept is not applicable when preparing the accounts. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis
can be found in the Statement of Accounting Policies.

Financial review

Most of the Academy's recurrent income is obtained from the EFA in the form of grants, the use of which is restricted
to particular purposes. The grants received from the FFA during the period ended 31 August 2023 and the associated
expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the statement of financial activities,

During the period ended 31 August 2023, total income was £2,333,276 and total expenditure was £2.369,867. The net
deficit for the year ended 31 August 2023 was £36,591 (2022: £271,683). When restricted fixed asset fund and the
local government pension scheme adjustment are excluded, there was a surplus of £4,781 (2022 deficit of £103,802),

At 31 August 2023, the net book value of fixed assets was £3.539.508 and movements in tangible fixed ussets are
shown in note 12 to the financial statements. During the period the assets were used exclusively for providing
education and the assaciated support services ta the pupils of the Academy.

-4 -




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Reserves policy
The Gevernors review the reserve levels of the academy trust throughout the year. This review encompasses the nature
of income and expenditure streams, the need to match income with commitments and the nature of the reserves.

The governors have decided that the level of reserves should be £70,000,

At 31 August 2023 tetal funds were £3,761.990 (2022: £3.673,381). This includes £3,539,808 (2022: £3,56%,180) held

in restricted fixed asset fund, which can only he realised by disposing of tangible fixed assets.

The academy’s *frec’ reserves include its funds after cxeluding restricted funds. As at 31 Augnst 2023, the valuc of frec
reserves (unrestricled [unds) was £76,197 (2022: £68,122) and the level of other reserves (restricted general lunds,
excluding pension reserve} was £145,985 {2022: £149,279).

The Gevernors ensure that the reserves are available for any or all of the academy’s purposes once it has met its
commitments and covered its other planned expenditure.

The pension reserve held within restricted lunds was in held at a £nil balance (2022: £113,000 deficit) at 31 August
2023, The valuation of the local government pension scheme al 31 August 2023 was a nel assel posilion ol £152,000.
The net asset has not been recognised on the basis this it isn't expected to be recoverable, see note 2 for further details.

Investment policy

The school holds no invesiments other than its capital balance.

- 15 -




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Pringipal risks and unccrtaintics

The main risks that the Academy is exposed to are summarised below. For each of these risks the probability, impact
and seriousness have been considered together with appropriate action and management plans:

Operational and repurational - this covers risks to the running of the Academy (including the capacity of staff
and buildings to meet the needs of pupils) and its performance in delivering the curricutum.

Financial - covering risks to the Academy Trust's financial position, including revenue streams, cost control and
cash management.

The risks to which the Academy Trust is exposed arise both internally and externally. External risks include those in
respect of future funding levels, competition, changes to rules and regulations, and the financial position of the staff
pension schemes.

The trust school estate is well maintained and is under constant review from our site manager. The chair of governors is
NEBOSH and Fire Satety qualified and has regular ‘walk arounds' with the site manager to ensure tha site is safe and
well maintained. The site manager has recently undertaken a DIE request to look at RAAC within our school and no
RAAC was lound. As we move inlo a MAT we have a number of visits [rom the Health and Safely manager and
Property manager (rom the Priory (rust, both persons have commented on how well the eslate hys been maintained and
that the school is In ‘good' order.

Financial and risk management objectives and policies
The Academy Trust does not use complex financial instruments. It manages its activities using cash and various items
such as trade debtors and trade creditors that arise directly from its operations.

The existence of these financial instruments exposcs the Academy Trust to a number of financial risks which arc
described in more detail below, The main risks arising from the Trust's [inancial instruments are liquidity risk and cash
{low inlerest rate risk.

Liquidity risk: The Trust manages its cash resources, including sufficient working capital, so that all its operating
needs are met without the need for short-term borrawing.

Interest rate risk: The Trust earns interest on cash deposits. With interest rates currently low, the govermnors will
consider action to increase the income from these deposits, provided it does not jeopardise the liquidity or security of
the Trust's assets,

Credit risk arises from the possibility that amounts awed to the Trust will not be repaid. The Trust does not undertake
credil aclivitics so il is only cxposed w eredit nisk as it arises [rom nermal business, Credil risk 1s managed through the
use of'approved banks and the prompt collection of amounts due.

Fundraising

The Academy undertakes minimal fundraising. This is carried out by the children elected to the School Council and
involves making and sclling lood items; table wop sales, making book marks and badges cle. and selling the ilems 1o
parents and children in the school. The money raised 1s used (o (und projects put lorward by the pupils which in the
past have included: outside reading area — books and beanbags; climbing wall, outside clock, ete.
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Plans for future periods
During 2023 - 2024, the schoel will transfer to The Priory Federation ol Academics Trust en 1 January 2024, The
academy will work 1o ensure 1t builds upon previous suceess by including the [Lllowing priorilies:

Teuchinyg and Learning
The School Development Plan outlines the key arcas af focus for 2023 — 2024 to enable realisation of the schoal’s
aims and vision,

Our aims nexl vear (2023 — 2024) will be;

®*  (Continue to ensure robust, systematic recording of safeguarding incidents that meet legislative requirements
Ensure all staff can recognise and record safeguarding incidents correctly

L I

Ensure government Working together to Improve School Attendance guidance (Scpt. 22) is cmbedded in
practice and pupil attendance (igures are raised

Te continue to ensure teachers have depth of subject knowledge to ensure precision in teaching

Te continue to ensure all curriculum implementation is established

Te continue to ensure SMSC 1s fully embedded in curriculum

To continue to ensure British Values and citizenship are embedded and have impact

‘T'e continue to drive the engagement of children {particularly pupll premium) in outside of school hours clubs
To continue to support those children who may nced to “catch up™ on their learning

To imercase the number of children achieving expeeled levels in all subjects

To increase the percentage of children achieving Greater Depth in all subjects

Te accelerate the progress of disadvantaged pupils

To improve teaching and learing in writing

Te continue to embed the new curriculum in the teaching and learning

To continue to cnsurc that subject leaders have the knowledge and skills necded in order to promote their subjoct

* & 5 8 & & & & & B & 0

and lead and cmbed it in the new curriculum
To conlinue 1o embed the use ol pasloral provision [or those children who need emolional supporl and aceess
outside services when appropriate to ensure support is robust

-17-
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
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School environment

To further develop outside play experience for the whole school

Te develop learning oppartunities far all children in the outside environment

To ensure decoration of school is of a gnod quality and aesthetically pleasing

Te provide an Astro turf area so that outside play can be continued throughout the vear; also to ensure that field
sports can be continued across the year

‘T'o refurbish and develop Early Y cars outside arca Lo promole learming in all environments
Leadership and Management:

* FEnsure the continuing development of key stage leaders, SENDCa and Deputy Headteacher

* T'o develop all leaders in line with systems and processes of The Priory Federation of Academies Trust which St.
John’s will be jeining in the academie year 2023 - 2024

®* Continuc (o work with our local network and colleagues 1o ensure the delivery of [ecused, planned CPD

*® Toimprove Leuders’ management of safeguarding and atlendance syslems

Care, Guidance and Support:

® Continue Lo adjust and amend the scheol’s behaviour policy and procedures in order Lor behaviour of pupils Lo

be excellent both in and outside of the ¢lassrooms moving towards a relational based school

* Continue enccuraging pupils to make healthy choices

*  Continue to ensure robust support for vilnerable pupils

®* Wark with Lincolnshire County Council to include those difficult to manage children

®  Continue to work with our local community to engage the children and create a partucrship for learning

* T conlinue w work within the “Caring 1o Learn™ approach (o working with vulnerable pupils (b ensure the best

lite chances and accelerated educational progress.
Staffing:

* Continug o develap the rale ol curriculum leaders cspecially supporting and developing curriculum leads (o
ensure their understanding of their curriculum area with regard 10 intent, implementation and impacl. To ensure
they understand data and can use this knowledge to further impact
To upskill teachers in their subject knowledge to ensure precise teaching

*  To support teachers new to St. John’s.
Provide support and training for new teaching assistants and those in new rolcs

Enrichment:

®  Ensurc opportunitics arc available for all pupils to make choices regarding extra-curricular activitics
®*  Ensure “talented” pupils have the opportunities (o [urther their talents
®* Provide enrichment opportunities with particular regard for Pupil Premium children

Building for our Future:

Continue Lo explore possibilities 1o provide outstanding lacililies: particularly in the areas ol sporl; technelogy; library
resources; Early Years Foundation Stage and school’s outside environment. In order to support the Academy in
achieving its aims, the Academy will draw upon the strengths, experience, expertise and dedication of its staff and
governors. However, in some instances, the Academy will draw upon outside specialist help.
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TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Funds held as custodian trustee on behalf of others
The Academy dacs not hold any asscts on or behall of any other charily or body,

Auditor
In so far as the Governors are aware:

. T
. T

A resolution proposing that UTTY Ilacker Young LLP be reappointed as auditor of the charitable company has been
agreed.

Approved by order ol the board of trustees on 13 Deeember 2023 and signed on ils behal My:

P Drury
Chair
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GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
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Scope of responsibility

As Governors we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that St. John’s Primary Academy has an
effective and apprepriate system of contral, financial and etherwise. However such a system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achicve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not absolute
agsurance against matcrial migstatement or loss,

The Board of Governors has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the [leadteacher, as accounting officer, for
ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in
accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between St. John's
Primary Academy and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the board of
governors any material weaknesses ot breakdowns in internal control.

Governance

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees® Report and in the Statement
of Trustees’ Responsibilities. The board of trustees has formally met 16 times during the year. Artendance during the
year at meetings of the board of trustoes was as follows:

Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible
S Manders (Vice Chair) 16 16
E Forrest-Leigh 4 8
L Marcer (Headteacher and Accounting Officer) (Resigned 31 August

2023) 13 14
Reverand T Rell 4 8
3 Pitts 9 14
T Footsoy (Vice Chair) 8 1
K Meloughlin 6 8
D Willars 6 8
P Drury {Chair) 10 11
L Robinson (Resigned 22 March 2023) 3 7
B Thorton |2 14
I Sisman (Accounting Officer) (Appointed 1 September 2023) 0 0
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During the academic year two trustees resigned their position on the Governing Board; Lisa Robinson (22nd March
2023) and Lorraine Marcer on her retirement as Head teacher (31st August 2023). The board also saw the retirement of
the School Business Manager, Jacqui Williams. Also during the year, Vicky Butters of SAAT" education was appointed
as Chief Financial Officer on 2 June 2023. Vicky is not an employee of the trust, however due to the pending transfer
out, it was not thonght appropriate to make a new appointment. The ESFA have approved this temparary arrangement
with SAAF,

Bascd on the recent Ofsted reports the main focus of the Governing Board has been that of support and challenge
lowards Lhe senior leadership and school as a whole. Governors have carried oul sile visits looking al key areas of
concern as noted in the Ofsted inspection of July 2022 and offering support to the Senior Leadership during the post
Ofsted workload. The Boards main focus this year has been to ensure that the school is best placed when it is te join the
Priory Federation of Academies, based on the directive of the Regional Schools Commissioners and the initial Ofsted
repart.

Governors undertook a skills audil in 2020 and planned 10 carry out one this academic year. However dug (o the evenls
of Ofsted and the merge into a new trust from January 2024 it was agreed thut Governors time would be best spent
supporting the school in its recovery and aims to go from a grading of inadequate to Good as soon as possible.

All data presented to the Governing Board was produced hy the Head teacher, Deputy Head teacher or the School
Business Manager, Governars challenged the presented data asking questions of the Senior Leadership and felt that all
data had been correet.

Conflicts of interest

To ensure all conflicty of interests ure noted and dealt with appropriately a single register of buginess interests is held.
Additionally, at the start of each meeting the Clerk asks all present if there is any conflict on matters on the agenda.
Governors are given the opportunity to raise their hand and declare interest, where the board decides if this is a conflict
of interest. Where it is deemed a conflict the governor or governors are asked to leave the meeting and retum at such
time that the matters causing the conflict have been addressed. An example of this was during MAT discussien prior to
Ofsted whereby a Governor had a conflict of interest. They remain separate from any discussion surrounding the future
of St John's within a MAT sctting,.
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Governance reviews

At the end of the previous academic year St JTohn's and the Governing Board had an Ofsted inspection which provided a
thorough assessment of the school. 'The Governor Board will undertake a review in 2023-24 academic year when it has
formally merped with the Priory Federation of Academics Trust.

Based on the assessmenl [rom Ofsted the board carried out independent visils and produced reporls ol the [ollowing
areas:
* Single Central Record - independent checks carried out on three areas of the SCR - all found to be compliant.
* Bullying - check on school policies, implementation. TIndertaken check on process of recording bullying and its
cffcetivencss. Found to be satisfactery and compliant with policy.
®  CPOMS - check process of recording data, Carried out checks to cnsure process correetly followed. All found to
be correct.
School Site Security
® Ilealth and Safety - investigations into site security and sign in process based on Ofsted findings. Determined
that school perimeter fence needed replacing. Work carried out in summer 2023.
®*  Prevent - training undertaken by all Governors in line with recent changes.
Accidents - review of process and methods of recording and monitoring.
®*  Sateguarding - review into policies and their effectiveness given Ofsted findings. Records all correct however in
paper torm. Advisced to move to electronic method of recerding incidents to allow for greater input by staft,
PE - review ol curriculum. Found evidence of elleclive use ol PE and Sports Premium [unding.
® Curriculum reviews of Lnglish; RI; Maths and PIISRT - Curriculum well embedded in all subjects with
exception to RE which lacked areas. Areas for improvement suggested including visits to religious centres such
as mosques and temples.
EYFS - review of curriculum intent and implementation - found to be of satisfactory standard.
* Food - review of school food policy and nutritional valuc of provided food. Agreed to review of data regarding,
uptake of school meals.
Pupil Premium - link governor worked closely with Pupil Premium lead (o ensure correct use ol [unds and
implementation of Pupil Premium policy and strategy.

Resource Commiilee

The Resources Committee is a sub-committee ot the main board of governars, This Committee has delegated power,
within legal consiraints, for all matiers coneerning the maintenance and development ol buildings, lor [inancial matlers,
including the creation of the annual budget and its subsequent monitoring. It makes recommendations en banking
arrangements and ensures that financial regulations are observed. At 5t. John's, the curriculum, its development and
achievement is seen as primary, and while the Pupils” Standards and Assessment, Persannel and Schoel Community.

Wellbeing and Resources work topether, the work of the Resources Comumittee is to assurc itself that proper costing of
curriculur, premises and stalling plans has been done, and 10 ensure thal resources are not exceeded. 1t does nat ilsell’
make the curriculum or educativnal policy which cause expenditure. The Commillee receives recemmmendations and
annually discusses and decides upon a draft budget, which must be approved by the Full Governing Body. Within the
framework of the approved budget, Academy Financial Regulations and any Governing Body guidelines on particular
matters, the Headreacher has delegated power to spend as necessary.
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Attendance at meetings in the year was as tollows:
Trustees Meetings attended Out of possible

S Manders (Viec Chair) 6 6
L Marcer (Headteacher and Accounting Officer) (Resigned 31 August
2023}

S Pitts

T Footsoy (Vice Chair)

P Drury (Chair)

L Robinson (Resigned 22 March 2023)

B Thornton

= 2 noa th Ln
[ R e A )

Review of value for money

As accounting ollicer the [leadteacher has responsibility [or ensuring that the academy trust delivers good value in the
use of public resources. The accounting ofticer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider
societal outcomes, as well as estate’s safety and management, achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.
The accounting officer considers how the academy trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money
during each academic year, and reports to the board of governors where value for money can be improved, including
the us¢ of benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the acadermy trust has delivered improved
value tor moncy during the year by:

Accessing joint training regarding moderation of curriculum

Accessing joint training and support for subject leaders: key stage leaders; SEND leader:

Accessed discounted training through Teaching School Alliance

Renegotiated site manager’s holiday time in order for him to be at school for the six week school summer
holiday allowing him to project manage refurbishment

Accessed discounted membership of education support through School business manager forum

Using online training (less costs)

* 4 0 &

The trust has a resource and audit committee which is is chaired by an experienced housing/building manager with
exceptional knowledge of buildings and monitory investment. The committee constantly reviews 'value for money' and
we work within our school policies to ensure any monies are spent in an appropriate manner to maintain the schoaol
¢state. There 15 a planned programme of repairs informed by appropriate surveys, site walks and reporting systems.
This ensures that the site is in good repair and risk are mitigated.

The purpose of the system of internal control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eluninate all risk of failure
to achicve palicics, alins and ohjectives. [t can, thercfore, only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of
cllectiveness. The system ol internal control is based on an on-going proccss designed o identify and prioritise the
risks (o the achievemenlt ol academy trust policies, aims and objectives, t evaluale the likelihood of those risks being
realised and the impact should they be realised. and to manage them efficiently, effectively and econemically. The
system of internal control has been in place in St. John’s Primary Academy for the period 1 September 2022 to 31
August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.
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Capacity to handle risk

The hoard of governors has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigare those rigks. 1'he board of governors is of the
vicew that there is a formal on-geing process for identityinp, evaluating and managing the academy trust's significant
risks that has been in place for the period 18t September 2022 to 31 August 2023 and up to the date of approval of the
annual report and [inancial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the board of governors.

The risk and control framework

‘The academy trust’s system of infernal financial control is based on a framework of regular management infarmation
and administrative procedures including the scgrepation of dutics and a system of delegation and accountability. 1n
particular, il includes:

*  comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed bry the board of governors;

* regular reviews by the Finance Committee reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts and
of majar purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programimes;
clearly delined purchasing (assel purchasc or capital investment) guidelines,
delegation ol authorily and segregalion ol dulies;
identification and munagement of risks.

The board of Governors has decided not to appoint an auditor for this purpose. Ilowever, the governors have asked the
Resources committee to carty cut a programme of internal checks. This has been chosen due to the Ofsted report and
time constraints hased on offering support for the school in its post Ofsted recovery.

The Resources committee's role includes giving advice on financial and other matters and performing a range of checks
on the academies trusts financial and other systems. In particular, the checks carried out in the curtent period included:

Testing the Single Central Record

Testng the use of PE and Spoerts premium funding

Testing the accidents procedure

Testing the process of recording bullying including the use of CPOMS
Testing safeguarding processes including the use of CPOMS

* & & & & @

Testing school foad provisien to ensure compliant

On a termly basis the Resources committee reports to the board of Governors, through the work of the Resources
committee on the operation of the systems of contrel and on the discharge of the board of trustee's financial
responsibilities. On an annual basis the Chair of the Resources committee prepare a summary report to the committee
outing the areas reviewed, key findings, recommendations and conclusions to help the committes consider actions and
assUss yoar ofl year progress,
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Review of ettectiveness
As accounting officer the Headteacher has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal
control, During the year in question the review has been informed by:

® the work of the external auditor
the financial management and governance self-assessment process

®  the work of the School Business Manager within the academy trust who has responsibility for the development
and maintenance of the internal control framework

* the work of the Resources comunittee

The accounting ofticer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Resources Commitiee and a plan 10 ensure continuous improvement of the system is in place,

Approved by order of the board of trustees on 13 Necember 2023 and signed on its behalf by

I Drury J Sismun
Trustee Accounting Officer
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ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

STATEMENT OF REGULARITY, PROPRIETY AND COMPLIANCE
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

As accounting ofticer of St John's Primary Academy Bracebridge Heath Ltd | have considered my responsibility to
notify the academy trust board of trustees and the Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity,
impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding, including for estates safety and management,
under the funding agreement between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my
consideration T have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Trust Handbook 2022, including
responsibilities for estates safety and management,

| continm that | and the academy trust's board of trustees arc able to identify any material irregular or improper use of
funds by the academy trust, or material nen-compliance with the torms and conditions of funding under the academy
trust's lunding agreement and the Academies Trust Handbook 2022,

I contirm that no instances of material ircegularity, inpropricty or funding non-compliance have been discovered o

daic, If any instances are identificd aller the date of this statement, these will be notilied to the board ol trustees and
CSTA,

J Sisman
Accounting Officer

13 December 2023
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STATEMENT OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITIES
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The trustess (who are also the directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law} are responsible
for preparing the trustees” report and the financial statements in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction
issued by the [iducation and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom
Generally Accepted Accounting Practice} and applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare accounts for each financial year. Under company law, the trstees must
not approve the acerunts unless they are satistied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
charitable company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, inchudling its income and cxpenditure,
Lor that period.

In preparing these accounts, the trustees are required to:

®  celect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
® pbserve the methods and principles in the Charitics SORP 2019 and the Academics Accounts Dircetion 2022 to
2023,
make judgements and accounling estimales that are reasonable and prudent;
state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the accounts: and

®*  prepare the accounts on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the charitable company

will continue in business.

The trustezs atre responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient o show and explain the
Charitable Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
Charitable Campany and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006,
They arc also responsible for satepuarding the assets of the Charitable Company and henee for taking reasonable steps
lor the prevention and deteetion ol (raud and other irregularitics.

The trustees are responsible far ensuring that in its conduct and operation the Charitable Company applies financial and
other controls, which confarm with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. Thev are
also responsible for cusuring grants received from the ESEFA/DIE have been appliced for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible [or the mainlensnce and inlegrity of the corporale and [inancial information included on
the Charitable Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 13 December 2023 and signed on its behalf by:

P Dhury
Chair
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ST JOHN'S PRIMARY
ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Opinion

We have audited the accounts of St John's Primary Academy Bracebridge Heath Ttd for the year ended 31 August 2023
which comprise the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and notes to the
accounts, including significant acepunting policics, The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Aceounling Standardy, including Financial Reporting Standard 1027
The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Trelund' (United Kingdom Generally Aceepted
Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023 {ssued by the
Cducation and Skills Tunding Agency.

Ln our opinion the accounts:
- give a true and fair view of the state of the charitable company's affairs as at 31 August 2023 and of iis incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended:

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companics Act 2006; and
- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2019 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to
2023.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our andit in accordance with Tnternarional Standards on Auditing (UK) (TSAs (UK)) and applicable law.
QOur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the 'Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
accounts' section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the ethical requirements
that arc relevant 1 our audit of the accounts in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we bave lulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requiremenls. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sutfticient and appropriate to provide a basis for our ¢pinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ST JOHN'S PRIVMARY
ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Conclusions relating to going concern

We draw attention 1o Note 1 to the financial statements which explains that the school within the trust s going to be
transferred after the year end to The Priory Federation of Academies Trust on | January 2024, The trustees consider it
to he inappropriate to adopt the going concern basis of acecunting in preparing the finaneial statements for the year
cnded 31 August 2023, Accordingly, the linancial statements have nat been preparcd under the going coneern basis as
described in Note 1.2,

The net assets of the trust will be transferred at their fair value. The company will no longer be active from 1 January
2024 although the trust is still operational until the net assets have been distributed, at which point the trust will be
formally dissolved. Qur opinion 1s not modified in respect of this matter.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the T'rustees' use of an alternative method to the going
coneemn hasis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have agreed with the Trustees' assessment that the academy trust is not a
going concern and they would be unable to continue for at least [2 months from when the financial statements are
authorizsed.

The accounts have been preparcd on the basis that all assets are realisable within 12 months of the ycar end and notc
1.2 delails this more lully, For comparative purposes the [igures have been presented in the same Lormal as prior vears
in the Balunce Sheet, however all assels und liabilities are due within one veur.

Or responsibilities and the responsibilities of the trustees with respect to going concarn are described in the relevant

sections of this report.
Other information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report other than the accounts and our auditor’s
report thereon, The trustees are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report. Gur opinion
on the accounts does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our reporrt,
we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our respensibility is to read the other information and, in
doing s0, consider whether the other infarmation is imaterially incomsistent with the accounts ar our knowledge
obrained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstatad. 1f we identify such material
inconsistencics or apparent material misstatoments, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the accounts themselves. 11 based on the work we have perlormed, we conelude that there is a material
misstatement ol this other informalion, we are required Lo report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the intformation given in the trustees’ report including the incorporated strategic report for the finuncial year for
which the accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and

- the trustees' report including the incorporaled sirategic reporl has been prepared in accordance with applicable
legal requirements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ST JOHN'S PRIVMARY
ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
In the light of the knewledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the trustees’ repart, including the incorporated strategic report.

We¢ have nothing to report in respeet of the tollowing matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
Lo Teport 1o you il in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept, ar returns adequate for our audit have not been reccived from
branches not visited by us; or

- the accounts are not in agreciment with the accounting records and returns] or

- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the statement of trustees’ responsibilities, the trustees are responsible for the preparation of
the accounts and for being satistied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud ar crror. Ln preparing the accounts, the trustees arc responsible for assessing the academy trust’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 1o going concern and using the going concern
basis of aecounting unless the truslees either intend (o liquidate the charitable company, or have no realistic allernalive
but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts

Our objectives are 1o obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the accounts as a whole are [ree [fom malerial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UIK) will
always derect a2 material misstaterment when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggrepate, they could reasonably be cxpected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these accounts,

Irregularitics, including fraud, arc instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations, We design procedurcs in ling
with our responsibilities, outlined above, W detect malerial misslalements in respect of irregularities, including [raud.
The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud, is detailed below.

Based on our understanding of the charitable company’s and the industry in which it operates, we identified that the
principal risks of non-compliance with laws and regulations related to:
* child protection,
the funding agreement,
academies accounts clirection 2022-2023,
the academies trust handbook 2022,
employment and health and safety regulation,
anti-bribery, corruption and fraud.

* & & & @
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ST JOHN'S PRIVMARY
ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

We considered the extent 1o which non-compliance might have a material cffect on the [inancial statements, We also
vonsidered those laws and regulations that have @ direct impact on the preparation ol the [inancial statements such as
the Companies Act 2006.

We evaluated management's incentives and opportunities for fraudulent manipulation of the financial statements
(ineluding the risk of override of controls) and determined that the principal risks were related to inflated income and
surplus. Audit procedures performed ineluded:

review ol the linancial statement disclosures W underlying supporling documentation,
enquiries of management,
* testing of journals and evaluating whether there was evidence of bias by the senior leadership team that
represented a risk of material misstatement due to fraud and
*  evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclasures, and
whethor the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and cvents in a manner that achicves fair
presentation.
*  eview ol correspondence and reports Lo the regulator, including correspondence with the Education and Skills
Funding Agency
® review of internal audit reports in so far as they related to the financial statements.
There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-compliance with
laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statcments, the less likely we would
become aware of it. Also, the risk of not detecting a matcrial misstatement duc to Traud is higher than the risk of not
delecling one resulling [rom error, as (taud may involve deliberate concealment by, lor example, [orgery or inlentivnal
misrepresentations, or through cellusion.

A [urther description ol our responsibilities s available on the Financial Reporting Council’s website at: htips
Jhwww e org.uk/anditorsresponsibilities, This description forms part of our auditor's report,

Use of our report

This report is made solely o the charilable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
lhe Compamies Act 2008, Our audil work has been undertaken so that we might state (o the chariluble company's
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the
charitable company's members as a body, for our andit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Elizabeth Searby (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalt of UHY Hacker Young 13 December 2023

Chartered Accountants
Statutory Auditor
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INDEPENDENT REPORTING ACCOUNTANT'S ASSURANCE REPORT ON REGULARITY TO
ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD AND THE EDUCATION AND
SKILLS FUNDING AGENCY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2423

In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 17 August 2023 and further to the requirements of the
Education & Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023, we have
carricd out an cngagement to obtain limired assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by
St John's Primary Academy Bracebridge Heath Lid during the period 1 Septernber 2022 10 31 August 2023 have been
applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the tinancial transactions conform to the authorities which govern
them.

This report is made solely to St John's Primary Academy Bracebridge Heath Ltd and ESFA in accordance with the
terms of our engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the St John's Primary Academy
Bracebridge Heath Ltd and ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. 1o the
fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyonc other than 8t John's Primary
Academy Bracebridge 1leath Lid and ESFA, [or our work, lor this report, or for the conclusion we have lormed.

Respective responsibilities of St John's Primary Academy Bracebridge Heath Ltd's accounting officer and the
reporting accountant

The accounting oflicer is responsible, under the requirements of St John's Primary Academy Bracebridge Healh Lid’s
funding agreement with the Secretary of State for Education dated 11 July 2011 and the Academies Financial
Tlandbook, extant from | September 2022, for ensuring that expenditure dishursed and income received is applied for
the purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance,
and are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2022 to 2023, We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying
out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period
1 September 2022 10 31 August 2023 have not been applicd (o purpescs intended by Parliament or that the linangial
ransaclions do not conform o the authorities which govern them.

Approach

We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Framework and Guide for External Auditors and Reporting
Accountant of Academy Trusts issued by ESTA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our
engagement letter,

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is o perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion an regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in
a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive apinion,

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant w the regularily and propricly ol the
academy trust's income and expenditure,
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The werk undertaken to draw to owr conclusion includes:

* An assessment of the risk of material irregularity and impropriety within the trust.

® Testing of those areas identified through risk assessment, including reviewing internal controls, analytical
review and enquiries of management.

*  Consideration of the evidence and concluding on the work carried out.

In Jing with the Framework and guide for External Audilors and Repaorling Aecountants ol Academy Trusts issucd
April 2023, we have nol performed any additional procedures regarding the academy (rust’s compliance with
safeguarding, health and safety and estates management.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our atrention which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure
dishursed and income received during the period | September 2022 to 31 August 2023 has not been applied to purposes
intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govem them,

Reporting Accountant
UHY Hacker Young

14 Park Row
Nottingham

NG 6GR

Dhated: 13 December 2023




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total Total
funds General Fixed asset 2023 2022
Notes X £ £ £ £
Tncome and endowments from:
Donations and capital grants 3 - 6,843 164,042 170,885 40,966
Charitable activities:
- Funding lor cducalional operations
4 - 2,134,137 - 2,134,137 1,998,524
Other trading activilies 5 8,041 20,179 - 28,220 29,734
Investrents 6 34 - - 34 40
Tatal 8075 2,161,159 164,042 2333276 2,069,264
Expenditure on:
Charitable activilies:
- Educational aperations 8 - 2,144,337 225,330 2,369,807 2,340,947
Total 7 - 2,144,337 225,330 2,369,867 2,340,947
Net income/(expenditure) 8.075 16,822 (61,488) (36,591 {271,683)
Transfers between funds 17 - (32,11¢) 32,116 - -
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains on defined benefit
pension schemes 19 - 125,000 - 123,000 1,640,000
Net movement in funds 8,075 109,706 (29.372) 28,409 1,368,317
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought farward 68,122 36,279 3,569,180 3,673,381 2,303,264
Taotal funds carried forward 76,197 145,985 3.539.808 3,761,990 3.673.581




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
INCLUDING INCOME AND EXPENDITURE ACCOUNT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Comparative year information Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total

Year ended 31 August 2022 funds General Fixed asset 2022
Notes £ £ £ £

Tncome and endowments from:

Donations and capital grants 3 - 4,300 36,666 40,966

Charitable activities:

- Funding lor cducalional operations 4 - 1,998,524 - 1,968,524

Other trading activities 5 10,669 19,065 - 29,734

Investments 6 40 - - 40

Total 10,709 2,021,889 36,066 2069264

Expenditure on:

Charitable activities:

- Educational operutions 8 - 2130249 210,698 2,340,947

Total 7 - 2,130,249 210,698 2,340,947

Net income/{expenditure) 10,709 {108,300} (174,032} {(271,683)

Translers belween lunds 17 - {189,151} 189,151 -

Other recognised gains/(losses)

Actuarial gains on defined benefit pension

schemes 19 - 1,640,000 - 1,640,000

Net movement in funds 10,709 1,342,489 15.119 1368317

Reconciliation of Tunds

Total funds brought forward 57413 (1,306,210 3.554.061 2,305.264

‘Total funds carried forward 068,122 36,279 3,500,180 3,673,581




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 AUGUST 2023

Notes

Fixed assets
Tangible assets 12
Current assels
Stock 13
Debtors 14
Cash at bank and in hand
Current liabilities
Creditors: amounts talling due within one year

15
Net current assets
Net assets excluding pension liability
Defined henefit pension scheme liahility 19

Total net assels

Funds of the academy trust:

Restricted funds 17
- Fixed assct funds

- Restricted income funds

- Pension reserve

Total restricted funds

Unrestricted income funds 17

Total funds

2023

11,232
244,215
237,786

493,233

(271,051)

3.539.808

222,182

3.761,990

3,761,990

3

539,808
145,983

3,685,793
76,197

3,761,990

2022

11,53%
69,669
311,451

392,658

(175,257)

3,565,180

217,401

3,786,581

{113,000

3,673,581

3,569,180
142,279

(113,000

3,605,459

68,122

3,073,381

The accounts on pages 34 to 58 were approved by the trustees and authorised for issue on 13 December 2023 and are

signed on their behalf by:

P Drury
Chair

Company registration number 07777372 (England and Wales)




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

Notes

Cash flows from uperating activities
Net cash provided by operating activities 20

Cash flows from investing activities
Dividends. interest and rents from investments
Capital grants [rom DIE Group

Purchase of tangible fixed assets

Net cash used in investing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

2023
£ £
15,730
34
26,435
(115,864)
(89,395)
(73.663)
111,451
237,786

2022
£ £
109,401
440
36,666
{359,526)
(322,820
(213.419)
524,870
311,451




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1.1

1.2

Accounting policies

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where
noted), judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below.

Basis of preparation

The accounts of the academy trust, which is a public benetit eatity under FRS 102, have been preparcd under the
historical cost convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard Applicable in the UK and
Republic of Treland (FRS 102}, the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice
applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the TTK and Republic of Treland (TRS 102) (Charities SORP (RS 102)), the Academies Accounts Threction 2022
to 2023 issued by ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companigs Act 2000,

Going concern
After the end of the accounting peried on 31 August 2023, the school within the trust is expected to be transferred
to another trust, being The Priory Federation of Academics Trust, on | January 2024,

This means that St John's Primary Academy Bracebridge Heath Lid 1s no lenger 4 going concern and the going
concern concept is not applicable when preparing the accounts.

The alternative basis of preparation means that assets at 31 August 2023 are stated at their estimated recoverable
amounts. The corresponding liabilities are stated at the estimated amounts realisable, including any redundancy
costs and professional fees to affect the wind up of the Trust.

The assets and liabilities of the Trust have been disclosed in line with their historic comparatives to give a better
understanding of the position. [Towever, all items are expected to be realised or settled before 31 August 2024,

Income
All incoming resources are recognised when the academy trust has entitlement to the funds, the receipt is
probable and the amount can be measured roliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the starement of financial activitics on a reccivable basis. The balance of income received
for speeific purposcs but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet.
Where income is received in advance ol meeting any perlormance-related conditions there is nol unconditional
entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred income until the
performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs befare income is received, the income is
accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the statement of financial activities in the period for which it is
receivable, and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of
capital prants arc reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed assct fund, Capital prants are recognised
when there is entitlement and are not delerred over the lile of the assel on which they are cxpended.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

14

Accounting policies (Continued)

Sponsorship inceme

Sponsership income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the statement of
financial activities in the perind in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related conditions),
where the receipt Is probable and it can be measured reliably.

Idanaticns
Donations ar¢ reeegnised on a reecivable basis (where there are no performance-related conditions) where the
receipl 1s probable and the amount can be reliably measured.

Other income
Other income, including the hire of thcilitics, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the

academy (rust has provided the goods or services.

Donated fixed asscts

Donated fixed assels are measured al fair value unless it 1s impractical 0 measure this reliably, in which case the
cost of the item to the donor is used. The gain is recognised as income from donations and a corresponding
amount is included in the appropriate fixed asset category and depreciated over the useful economic life in
accordance with the academy trust‘s accounting policies.

Expenditure

Expenditure is recognised once there 1s a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benelit o a third
party, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement, and the amount of the
obligation can be measured reliably.

Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared
costs, including support costs involved in undertaking cach activity, Dircct costs attributable to a single aclivity
are allocaled direetly o that activily. Shared costs which contribule (0 more than one activily and supporl costs
which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned between those activities on 4 busis consistent with
the use of resaurces. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, and depreciation charges are
allocated on the portion of the asset’s use.

All resources expended are inclusive of irrecoverable VAT,

Expenditure on raising funds

This includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and includes
costs of all fundraising activitics cvents and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activitics
These are costs incurred on the academy trist's educational operations, including support costs and costs relating
to the povernance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activitics.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Accounting policies (Continued)

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation
Assets costing £300 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation and
any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, cither from the government or
[ftam the privale scetor, they are included in the balance sheet at cost and depreciated over their expeeted usclul
economic lile. The related grants are credited o a restricled fixed asset fund in the statement of (inaneial
activities and carried forward in the balance sheet. Depreciation on such agsets is charged to the restricted fixed
asset fund in the statement of financial activities so as to reduce the fund over the useful economic life of the
related asset on a hasis consistent with the academy trust's depreciation policy. Where tangible fixed assets have
been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Depreciation is pravided on all tangible fixed assets other than land, at rates calculated to write off the cost of
cach assct on a reducing balance basis over its expeeted usctul life, as follows:

Long leasehoeld buildings 50 years
Computer equipment 3 years
Fixtures, fiftings & equipment 10 vears

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrving value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement
of financial activities.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligarion at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of econamic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can
be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust anticipates it will pay to
s¢ltle the debt or the ameunt it has reccived as advanced payments [or the goods ol services it must provide,

T.cased asscts

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Financiul instruments
The academy trust only helds basie financial instruments as defined in FRS 102, The financial asscts and
financial liabilitics ol the academy trust and their measurement basis arc as follows,

Financial assets
I'rade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at amortised cost.

Prepaymcents arc not tinancial instruments,

Cash al bank is classified as 4 busic financial instrument and is measured al face value,

- 40 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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1 Accounting policies (Continued)

Financial liabilitics
Trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at amortised cost.
Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments disclosure definition.

Deferred incame is not deemed ta be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has already taken place and there
is an ebligation (o deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument,

1.9  Stock
Stock i valued at the lower ol cost and net realisable value, Net realisable value is based on cstimaled sclling
price less further costs to completion and disposal. Provision is made for obsolete and slow moving stock,

110 Taxation
The academy trust is considerad to pass the tests set out in Paragraph | Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corperation tax purposcs. Accordingly, the
academy trust is potentially exempl [rom taxation in respeet of income or capilal gains reecived within calegorics
covered by chapter 3 part 11 ol the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxaton of Chargeable
Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

1.11 Pensions benefits
Retirement benefits to cmployees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers' Pension Scheme ("TPS') and
the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS'). These are detined benefit schemes and the assets arc held
sepuralely [fom those ol the academy (rusl.

The TPS is un unlunded scheme and contnbutions are caleulated Lo spread the cost of pensions over employees'
working lives with the academy trust in such 4 way that the pension cost is 4 substantially level percentage of
current and tuture pensionable payroll. The centributiens are determined by the Government Actuary based on
quadrennial valuations using a prospective unit credit method. The TPS is an unfunded multi-employer scheme
with no underlving assets ta assign between employers. Consequently, the TPS 1s treated as a defined
contribution scheme for accounting purpases and the contributions are recognised in the period to which they
relate.

The LGPS is a funded multi-emplover scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust
in separate trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are
measured on an actuarial basis using the projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the
current rate of return on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabiliries. The
actuarial valuations arc obtained at lcast tricnnially and arc updated at cach balance sheet date. The amounts
charged o nel income or expenditure are the current service costs and the costs of scheme intreductions, benefil
changes, settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of statt costs as incurred. Net interest on the net
defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the statement of financial activities and comprises the interest
cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, calculated by multiplyving the fair
value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used ta discount the henefit obligations. The
difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is
recognised in other recogniscd gains and losscs. Actuarial gains and losses arc recopnised immediately in ather
Co0g

recognised gains and losses.

-4l -




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1.12

Accounting policies (Continued)
Fund accounting

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable
objects of the academy trust at the diseretion of the trustees.

Restricted lixcd asset funds are resources which are ta be applied ta speeilic capital purposes imposed by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency, Department lor Educalion or other [Unders where the assel acyuired or

created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general lunds comprise all other restrieted [unds reecived and include grants [rom the Edueation and
Skills Funding Agency and Department for Education.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Accounting estimates and judgements are centinually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factars, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimales and assumptions concerning the {uture. The resulting dccounting estimaltes
and agsumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a marterial adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

_4n -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

2

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement (Continued)

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a nunber of
factors that arc determined on an actuarial basis using a varicty of assumptions,

The assumplions used in determining lhe net cost or inceme for pensions include the discount rate. Under
FRS102 the discount rate is determined by reference 1o market yields at the year-end date on high quality
corporate bonds. On this basis the trust’s actuary has caleulated a discount rate of 5.3% at 31 August 2023 which
is higher than the discount rate used at 31 August 2022, 'I'he impact ot the movement in the discount rate is to
deercasc the defined benefit oblipations by approximately 4% compared te 2022. This decrease has a dircet
impact on the quantilication of the overall pension balance reported in these linancial statemaents at 31 August
2023, Any changes in these assumplions, which are disclosed innote 19, will impact the carrying amount of the
pensien liabilicy.

Furthermore, a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full acruarial valuation performed at
31 March 2022 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions balance at 31 August 2023, Any diffcrences
between the figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the
carrying amounl ol the pensien liability.

As a result of the above, being the increase in the discount rate, the pension valuation detailed in the actuarial
report at 31 August 2023 is a net asset position of £152,000. The net asset position has not been recognised and
instead a break even position of £nil asset/ liahility is reflected in the financial statements. The basis for the
decision to not recopgnise the net asget position is due to the fact that the amounr is not recoverable from the
pension scheme and therctore should not be recognised as a financial assct. lnstead the actuarial gain on the
scheme has been restricted by £152,000 to result in a £nil position at the reporting period end.

The ultimate responsibility for setting the assumptions is that of the Academy Trust, as the employer, however
each year the LGPS actuary proposes a standard set of assumptions as part of the valuation exercise, using their
expert opinian, and which comply with the accounting requirements. The Academy Trust has, in practice with
mast employers, adopted the recommendad actuarial assumptions following further consultation with its auditors
to cnsure these assumptians are reasonable and in line with those adopted by other academy trusts.

Donations and capital grants

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total

funds funds 2023 2022

£ £ £ £

Capital grants - 164,042 164,042 36,606
(ther donations - 0,843 0,843 4,300
- 170,885 170,885 40,966

The income from donations and capital grants was £170,885 (2022 £40,9660) of which £6,843 was rcstricted
(2022: £4,300) and £164,042 was restricted Oxed asscls (2022: £36,660).




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

4 Funding for the academy trust's educational operations

Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds 2023 2022
£ £ £ £
DIE/ESFA grants
General annual granl (GAG) - 1,697,470 1,697,470 1,634,380
Other DIE/ESFA grants:
UIFSM - 61,359 61,359 59,420
Pupil premium - 126,912 126,912 121,327
PE sportls grant - 19,400 19,400 15,440
MSAG and supplementary grant - 71,881 71,881 20,063
Others - 24,071 24,071 29203
- 2,001,093 2,001,093 1,883,833
Other government grants
SEN funding - 114,199 114,199 93,177
Other lacal authority grants - 18,845 18,845 21,514
- 133,044 133,044 114,691
2,134,137

Total funding - 2,134,137

1,998,524

The income from funding for educational operations was £2,134,137 (2022: £1,998,524) of which £2,134,137

was restricted (2022: £1,998,524),

5 Other trading activities

Unrestricted Restricted Total Tolal

funds funds 2023 2022

£ £ £ £

School fund receipts - - - 2,065
Other income 8.041 20,179 28,220 27.669
8,041 20,179 28,220 29,734

The income from other trading activities was £28,220 (2022: £29,734) of which £8 (4| was unrestricted (2022:

£10,009) and £20,179 was restricted (2022: £19,005).
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6 Investment income

Short term deposits

Unrestricted Restricted

funds funds
£ £
34 -

Total
2022

40

The mcome from funding for investment income was £34 (2022; £40) of which £34 was unrestricted (2022;

£40).

7 Expenditure

Non-pay expenditure ‘Total Total
Staff costs Premises Other 2023 2022
£ £ £ £ £

Academy's educational operalions
- Direct costs 1,508,937 - 75,226 1,584,163 1,430,903
- Allocated support costs 283,772 347,639 153,993 785,704 910,044
1,752,709 347,939 229,219 2,309,867 2,340,047
Net income/(expenditure) for the year includes: 2023 2022
£ £
Fees payable o audilor {or audil services 9,250 2,250
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 225,530 210,698
Net interest on defined benefit pension liability 4 {HH) 26,000

- 45 -
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8 Charitahle activities

All from restricted funds:
Dircet costs
Educational operations

Suppaort costs
Educational operations

Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs
Dreprecialion

Premiscs costs

Legal costs

Otther support costs
Governanee costs

9 Staff

Stafl costs
Staff costs during the yoar were:

Wages and salaries
Social security costs
Pension costs

Staff costs - employees
Agency staff costs

Stuff development and other staff costs

Total staff expenditure

2023 2022
£ £
1,584,163 1,430,903
785,704 910.044
2,369, 867 2,340,947
2023 2022
£ £
283,772 412,014
225,530 210,698
122,409 121,117
31,964 25,203
111,643 132,112
10,386 5,900
785,704 910,044
2023 2022
£ £
1,317,928 1,225,523
120,571 106.408
334,489 440,743
1,772,988 L 772.674
10,625 5,688
1,783,613 1,778,362
9,096 6,168
1,792,709

1,784,530

- 46 -
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9 Staff (Continued)

Staff numbers
The average number of persans employed by the academy trust during the year was as follows:

2023 2022

Number Number

Teachers 19 17
Administration and support 38 44
Munagement 4 5
1 62

Higher paid staff
The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding emplover pension costs and employer national
insurance contributions} exceeded £60,000 was:

2023 2022

Number Number

£60,000 - L70,000 1 |
£80,000 - £60,000 1 -

Kev management personnel

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprisc the trustecs and the senior management team as
lisied on page 1. The wlal amount of employee benelits {including employer pension contributions and cmplayer
national insurance contributions) received by key management personnel [or their services 0 the academy trust
wias £230,417 (2022: £237 641).

-47 -




ST JOHN'S PRIMARY ACADEMY BRACEBRIDGE HEATH LTD

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 AUGUST 2023

1)

12

Trustees' remuneration and expenses

The headteacher and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they provide
undertaking the roles of headteacher and staff, and not in respect of their services as trustees. Othar trustees did
not receive any payments from the academy trust in respect of their role as trustees, During the vear, expenses
totalling £nil were made to the trustees (2022: £nil).

The value of trustees’ remuneration including emplayvers pension contributions was as follows:

L Marcer (previous Headteacher and 'Itustee) (Resigned 31 August 2023);
Remuncration £80,000 - £85,000 (2022: £30,000 - £35,000)
Employcrs' pension contributions paid £15,000 - £20,000 (2022: £10,000 - £15,000)

B Thornton {Staff Trustee):
Remuneration £60,000 - £65,000 (2022: £45.000 - £50,000)
Employers' pension contributions paid £10,000 - £15,000 (2022: £10,000 - £15,000)

Other related party transactions invalyving the (rustees are soi cut within the related partics note,

Trustees' and officers’ insurance

i accordance with normal commercial practice, the academy trust has purchased insurance to protect tiustees
and otficers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or emissions occurring whilst on academy trust
business. The insurance provides caver up to £5.000,000 on any cne claim but the cost for the years ended 31
August 2023 and 31 August 2022 cannot be determined.

Tangible fixed assets

Long Computer Fixtures, ‘Total
leasehold equipment  fittings &
buildings equipment
£ £ £ £
Cosl
At | September 2022 3457016 248,491 812,474 4,517,981
Additions 155,143 16,560 24,435 196,158
At 3] Auvgust 2023 3,612,159 265,051 836,929 4,714,139
Depreciation
ALl September 2022 504,391 175,471 268,939 948_801
Charge for the year 105,823 37,582 82,125 225,530
AL 31 August 2023 610,214 213,053 351,064 1,174,331
Net book value
At 31 August 2023 3.001,945 51,998 485,565 3,539,808

At 31 August 2022 2,952,025 73,020 543.535 3,569,180

- 4% -
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12

13

14

Tangible fixed assets

(Continued)

The land and buildings were valued as at 31 August 2012 by a qualified finm of chartered surveyors. The
valuation was undertaken using the depreciated replacement cost methed and resulted in a valuation of
£2,850,000 ol which £598.500 related (o land. [n vpinion ol the trustees there has been no material movement in

the valuation during the year o 31 August 2023,

The Long leasehold land and buildings includes land valued at £598, 500 which is not depreciated.

The Long leaschold land and buildings are held under a 125-vear lease from Lincolnshire County Council at nil

rental. They arg valued al depreciated replacement cost and recognised in the Academy Trust's balance sheel.

Stock

Orther stock

Debtors

(her deblors
Prepayments and accruad income

Creditors: amounts falling due within vne year

Trade creditors

Other taxation and social security
(rther creditors

Accruals and deterred income

2023 2022
£ £
11.232 11,538
2023 2022

£ £
22,005 10,941
222210 58,728
244 215 69,669
2023 2022

£ £
118,807 34,455
27,519 23,767
34,656 20,742
90,069 87.253
271,051 175,257

40 -
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16  Deferred income

Delerred income 1s included within:
Creditors due within one year

Deferred income at 1 September 2022
Released firom previous years

Resources delerred in the year

Deferred income at 31 August 2023

2023 2022
3 £
4592 36,893
39,503 36,364
(39,807) (36,364)
45,920 39,893
45920 39,893

The deferred income pravision above relates to grants recerved for Universal Free School Meals, and rates relief

ingome relating to the 23/24 financial year,

17 Funds
Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2022 Income Expenditure transfers 2023
£ £ £ £ £
Restricted general funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 149,279 1,697.470 (1,668.648) {32,118} 145,985
UIFSM - 61,359 {61,359) - -
Pupil premium - 126,912 (126,912) - -
Other DFE/ESFA grants - 115,352 (115.352) - -
Other government grants - 133,044 (133,044) - -
Other restricted [unds - 27,022 {27.022 - -
Pension reserve (113,000) - {12,000} 125,000 -
36,279 2,161,159 (2,144.337) 92 884 145,985
Restricted fixed asset funds
IME group capital grants 3,569,180 164,042 (225,53 32116 3,539,808
Total restricted funds 3,605,459 2,325,201 (2,369,867) 123,000 3,685,793
Unrestricted funds
Cieneral funds 68,122 8.075 - - T76.197
Total funds 3,673,581 2,333,276 (2,369,867) 123000 3,761,990
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Funds (Continued)
The specific purposes tor which the funds are to be applied are as follows:

Unrestricted income [unds represent those resources which may be used towards meeling any ol the charitable
objects of the academy trust at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are applied to specific capital purposes by the Fducation and
Skills Funding Agency, IJepartment for Fducation or other funders where the assets acquired or created are held
far a specitfic purpose.

In the year capital grants ol £164,042 were received, lixed asset additions were £196,158: the excess expenditure
of £32,116 was funded from GAG.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received and include grants from the Rducation and
Skills Funding Apency and the Department for Education.

Under the funding agreement with (he Sceretary of State, the academy trust was not subjeet 10 a limit on the
amount OF GAG that it could carry [orward at 31 August 2023,

The pension reserve held within restricted funds was a £nil balance at 31 August 2023. See further detail in note
2 and note 19 regarding the valuation,

The trust paid additional contributions of £13,582 per annum to help pay off the pension defieit,
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18

Funds

Comparative information in respect of the preceding period is as follows:

Restrieted gencral funds
General Annual Granl (GAG)
UTFSM

Pupil premium

Orther DIE/ESCA grants
Other government grants
Other restricted funds
Pension reserve

Restricted fixed asset funds
DT group capital grants

Tatal restricted funds
Unrestricted funds

General funds

Tatal funds

Analysis of nct assets between funds

(Continued)

Fund balances at 31 August 2023 are

represented by:
Tangible lixed assels
Current assets
Current liabilities

Total net assets

»

Balance at Gains, Balance at
1 September losses and 31 August
2021 Income Expenditure transters 2022

£ £ £ £ £

263,790 1,634,380 (1,359,740 (182,151) 149,279

- 59,420 {59,420y - -

- 121,327 (121.327) - -

- 68,706 (68,706) - -

- 114,691 (114.691) - -

- 23.365 (23,365) y ;
(1.570,000) - (183.001) 1,640,000 {113,000)
(1,306,210) 2,021,889  (2,130249)  1.450,849 36,279
3,554,061 36.666 (210.698) 189,151 3,569,180
2,247,851 2,058,555 (2,340.947) 1,640,000 3,603,459
57,413 10,709 - - 68,122
2,305,264 2,069,264 2,340,947) 1,640,000 3,673,381
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total

Funds General Fixed asset Funds

£ £ £ £

- - 3,539 808 3,539,808

76,197 417,036 - 493,233
- (271.051) - (271,051)

76,197 145,085 3,539,808

3,761,990

o

[ge]
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18  Analysis of net assets between funds (Continued)
Unrestricted Restricted funds: Total

Funds General Fixed asset Funds

£ £ £ £

Fund balances at 31 August 2022 are
represented by:

Tangible lixcd assels - - 3,509,180 3,369,180
Current assets 68,122 324,536 - 392.658
Current liahilities - (175,257) - (173,257)
Pension scheme liability - (113,004) - (113,000
Total net asscts 08,122 36,279 3,509,180 3,073,381

19 Pcnsion and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers’ Pension Scheme England
and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Gavernment Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-teaching staff, which is managed by Lincolnshire County Council. Both are multi-employer defined benefit
schemes.

The pension costs are assessed in accordance with the advice ol independent qualilied acluaries. The lalest
actuarial valuation of the TP'S related to the period ended 31 March 2020, and that of the LGPS related to the
period ended 31 March 2022,

Contributions amounting to £34,594 (2022: £29,814) were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2023 and are
included within creditors.

Teachers' Pension Scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory. contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014, Membership is automatic for teachers in academy trusts. All
teachers have the option to apt out of the TPS following enrolment.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme to which both the member and emplaver makes contributions, as a percentage of
salary. These contribitions are credited to the Txchequer, Retirement and other pension benefits are paid hy
public funds provided by Parliament.

Yaluation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Governmenl Acluary, using normal actuanial principles, conductls a Cormal actuarial review of the TIPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
1IM Treasury every 4 vears. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial
scheme valuations are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many
ather factors. The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2020. The valuation report
was puhlished by the Departiment for Education on 30 Octoher 2023,
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19  Pension and similar obligations (Continued)

The key elements of the valuation and subszquent consultation are:
* cmployer contribution ratos sot at 28.68% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer administration
charge)
tolul scheme ligbililies {pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of [uture benefits) for service
to the effective date of £262,000 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions together with
the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £222,2010 million giving a notional past service
deficit of £39,800 million
® the SCAPE rate, sct by HMT, is used to determine the notional investment return. The current SCAPE rate
is 1.7% above the rate o' CPI, and is based on the Office for Budget Responsibility s forecast for
long-tenm GDP growth.

The revised employer contribution ratc, arising trom the 2020 valuation, is duc to be implemented from 1 April
2024, The next valuation result is due to be implemented from 1 April 2027,
The emplover's pensien costs paid to the TPS in the period amounted to £178,518 (2022: £159.982).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers” Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is an unfunded multi-employer pension scheme. The academy
trust has accounted for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The academy
trust has set out ahove the information available on the scheme.

Local Government Pension Scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined-henefit scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administerad funds. The
total contributions are as noted below. The agreed contribution rates for future yzars are 28.6% for employers and
between 7.4% and 11.7% for ecmployecs.

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, fo a guarantee that, in the event of
academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came into torce on 18 July 2013 and on 21 July 2022, the Department for Education
reallirmed its commiliment to the guarantee, wilh a parliamentary minute published on GOV.UK.

The trust paid additional contributions of £13,582 per annum to help pay off the pension deficit.

Total contributions made 2023 2022

£ £
Employer's contribulions 147,000 121,000
Hmployees' cantributions 34,000 25,000
Total contributions 181,000 150.000
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19  Pension and similar obligations

Principal actuarial assumptions 2023

Yo
Rate of increase in salaries 3.83
Rate ol increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.83
Discount rate for scheme labilities 5.30
Inflation assumption (CPI) 2.85
Commutation of pensions 1o lump sums S0

(Continued)

2022
Yo

3.25
295
425

The current mortalily assumplions include sullicient allowance [or [uture improvements in mortality rates. The

assurned lile expectations en retirement age 65 are:

2023
Years
Retiring loday
- Males 19.3
- Females 22,6
Retiring in 20 years
- Maley 20.8
- Females 24.0
Scheme liabilitics would have been affected by changes in assumptions as follows;
20123
£000
Discount rate + 0.1% 3N
Discount rate - (0. 1% 38
Mortality ussumption + 1 yeusr 51
Mortlality assumption - 1 year (49}
Salary increase rate + (0,1% 3
Salary increase rate - 0.1% 3

2022
Years

2022
£000
(50)
51

62
(60

(8)
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Pension and similar obligations

The ucademy trust’s share of the assets in the scheme

Equilics
RBonds

(lash
Property
Other asscts

Total market value of assets

The actual return on scheme assets was £(151,000) (2022: £2,000).

Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities

Current service cost
[nterest income

Interest cost
Adminislralion expenses

Total operating charge

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations

At 1 September 2022
Current scrvice cost
Interest cost

Emplovee contributions
Actuarial gain

Benefits paid

At 31 August 2023

(Continued)
2023 2022
Fair value Fair value
£ £
1,291,000 1,393,000
275,000 225,000
71,000 45,000
155,000 241,000
147,000 -
1,939,000 1,904,000
2023 2022
£ £
155,000 278,000
(85,000) (30,000
87,000 55,000
2,000 1.000
159,000 304,000
2023 2022
£ £
2,017,000 3,316,000
155,00 278,000
27,000 55,000
34,000 26,000
{359.000) (1,667,000)
5.0 6,000
1,939.000

2.017,000
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20

Pension and similar obligations (Continued)

Changes in the fair value of the academy trust's share of scheme assets

2023 2022

£ £

At | Seprember 2022 1,904,004 1,746.000
Inlerest income 85.000 30,000
Actuarial loss {234,000) (27,000)
Employer contributions 147,000 121,000
Cmployee contributions 34,000 20.000
Benefits paid 5000 6.000
Administration expenses (2,000) (1,000)
Al 31 August 2023 1,939,000 1,204,000

The pension valuation detailed in the actuarial report at 31 August 2023 is a net asset position of £152,000. The
net asset position has not been recognised and instead a break even position of £nil asset/ liability is reflected in
the financial statements. The basis for the decision to not recognise the net asset position is due to the fact that the
amount is not recoverable from the pension scheme and therefore should not be recognised as a financial asset.
Instcad the actuarial gain on the scheme has been restricted by £132,000 to result in a £nil position at the
reporting period end. This adjustiment has been made within the actuarial loss of £234,000 in the above table,

Reconcilialion of net expenditure (o net cash flow [rom operaling actlivities

2023 2022

Notes £ £
Net expenditure tor the reporting period (as per the statement of
financial activitics) (36,591) {271,683
Adjusted for;
Capital grants from DMTE and other capital income (164,042} (36,666)
Investmenl income receivable 6 (34) {40)
Defined benelit pension costs less contributians payable 19 8,000 157,000
Defined benefit pension scheme finance cast 19 4,000 26,000
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets 223,530 210,698
Deercase/(inerease) in stocks el (2,473)
(Increase)/decrease in debtors (36,939 45101
Increase/(decrease) in creditors 15,500 (18,536)
Net cash provided by operalting aclivilies 15,730 109,401
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22

23

24

Analysis of changes in net funds
1 Scptemher Cash flows31 August 2023

2022
£ £ £

Cash 311,451 (73,6635} 237,786

Related party transactions

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustecs being drawn from local
public and private scelor organisalions, iransactions may lake place with organisations in which the trustees have
an interest. All transactions involving such organisalions are conducled in accordance with the requirements of
the ITandbook, including notitving the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1 April 2019 and obrtaining their
approval where required, and with the academy trust’s financial regulations and nermal procurement procedures
relating to connected and related party transactions.

No related party transactions took place In the period of account (other than certain trustees' remuneration
already disclosed in note 10).

Post balance sheet events

On | January 2024 1t has been agreed that the school operated by the trust will transier to The Priory Federaion
of Academies Trust.

The associated assets and liabilities included in the trust balance sheet at 31 August 2023 remain under the
control of the Trustees until such time as the assets and liabilitics have been distributed to the incoming
sponsoring trust. The trust still holds these associated assets and liabilitics al the date ol approval af these
[inancial stalements, and continues 1o receive ineome and incur expendilure in relution W the operation of the
school.

Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes (o contribule 1e the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he or she 15 o member, or wilhin vne year aller he or she ceases 10 be 4 member, such
amount as may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he or she ceases to
be a member.
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